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Item 1. Financial Statements.

Part I. Financial Information

Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)
(in millions, except par value) June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 413 $ 636
Accounts receivable, net 1,071 973
Inventories, net 1,188 941
Other current assets 212 193
Total current assets 2,884 2,743
Property, plant and equipment, net 424 390
Goodwill 3,079 2,705
Intangible assets, net 1,218 461
Other assets 379 346
Total assets $ 7,984 § 6,645
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 980 § 905
Current portion of long-term debt 12 12
Accrued liabilities 602 608
Total current liabilities 1,594 1,525
Long-term debt 1,979 1,396
Obligations payable under Indemnification Agreements 625 609
Other liabilities 492 366
Total liabilities 4,690 3,896
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: 100 shares authorized, 0.5 shares issued and outstanding at
June 29, 2024 and no shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2023, respectively 482 —
Common stock, $0.001 par value: 700 shares authorized, 152 and 146 shares issued and
outstanding at June 29, 2024, respectively, and 151 and 145 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2023, respectively — —
Additional paid-in capital 2,276 2,226
Retained earnings 881 810
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (242) (194)
Treasury stock at cost (103) (93)
Total stockholders’ equity 3,294 2,749
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 7984 § 6,645

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions, except per share data) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Net revenue $ 1,589 $ 1,602 $ 3,075 $ 3,151
Cost of goods sold 1,142 1,166 2,228 2,295
Gross profit 447 436 847 856
Operating expenses:
Research and development expenses 21 29 46 56
Selling, general and administrative expenses 280 242 511 486
Intangible asset amortization 13 10 22 19
Restructuring, impairment and extinguishment costs, net 11 2 18 4
Total operating expenses 325 283 597 565
Income from operations 122 153 250 291
Other expenses, net 48 42 90 82
Interest expense, net 15 17 28 34
Income before taxes 59 94 132 175
Provision for income taxes 29 44 59 68
Net income $ 30 8 50 $ 73 S 107
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 0.19 $ 034 § 049 $ 0.73
Diluted $ 0.19 § 034 § 048 § 0.72
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 146 147 146 147
Diluted 149 149 148 149

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Comprehensive income:
Net income $ 30 S 50 73 3 107
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Foreign exchange translation (loss) gain (12) 10 43) 26
Pension liability adjustments — 1 — 4
Changes in fair value of effective cash flow hedges 4) 5 (5) ()
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (16) 16 (48) 28
Comprehensive income $ 14 3 66 25 $ 135

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $ 73 S 107
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 52 49
Stock-based compensation expense 29 25
Other, net 17 6
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquired companies:
Accounts receivable, net 57) 35)
Inventories, net 4) (15)
Other current assets 9 3
Accounts payable 31 44
Accrued liabilities (78) 94)
Other liabilities 22 27
Net cash provided by operating activities 94 117
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (1,334) 6)
Capital expenditures (36) (49)
Other investing activities, net 6 —
Net cash used in investing activities (1,364) (55)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of incremental term loans under the A&R Term B Facility, net 582 —
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of issuance costs 482 —
Repayments of long-term debt (6) (6)
Other financing activities, net (6) (12)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,052 (18)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ) 10
Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (223) 54
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 637 329
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period $ 414§ 383
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid, net of swaps $ 38 % 46
Taxes paid, net of refunds $ 88 $ 67
Capital expenditures in accounts payable $ 16 § 20

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Fiscal Quarters

(in millions, except shares in thousands)
Balance at March 31, 2024
Net income
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Preferred stock issuance

Common stock issuance, net of shares withheld
for taxes

Stock-based compensation awards issued for
acquisition of Snap One

Stock-based compensation expense
Preferred stock dividend

Balance at June 29, 2024

Balance at April 2, 2023
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Common stock issuance, net of shares withheld
for taxes

Stock-based compensation expense
Balance at July 1, 2023

Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(Unaudited)
Preferred Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock
Additional Accamulated Total
Paid-In Retained  Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Loss Shares Amount Equity

— 3 — 146,013 § — 3 2,243 $ 853 § (226) 5946 $ (101) $ 2,769

— — — — — 30 — — — 30
— — — — — — (16) — — (16)
500 482 — — — — — — — 482
— — 256 — 1 — = 87 @ M

— — — — 17 — — — — 17

— — — — 15 — — — — 15
— — — — — @ — — — @

500 $ 482 146,269 § — 3 2,276 $ 881 § (242) 6,033 § (103) $ 3,294
— — 147,084 § — 3 2,191 $ 657 § (200) 2,547 § (44) $ 2,604

— — — — — 50 — — — 50

— — — — — — 16 — — 16

— — 565 — — — — 355 (6) (6)

— — — — 13 — — — — 13

— — 147,649 $ — 3 2,204 $ 707 % (184) 2902 § (50) § 2,677
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Fiscal Year to Date Periods

Preferred Stock Common Stock Treasury Stock
Additional Accamulated Total
Paid-In Retained  Comprehensive Stockholders’

(in millions, except shares in thousands) Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Loss Shares Amount Equity
Balance at January 1, 2024 — 3 — 145389 § $ 2,226 $ 810 $ (194) 5,536 $ 93) $ 2,749

Net income — — — — 73 — — — 73

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — — — (48) — = (48)

Preferred stock issuance 500 482 — — — — — — — 482

Common stock issuance, net of shares withheld

for taxes — — 955 4 — — 422 ©9) )

Stock-based compensation awards issued for

acquisition of Snap One 17 17

Stock-based compensation expense — — — 29 — — — — 29

Preferred stock dividend — — — — — ?2) — — — ?2)

Common stock repurchases — — (75) — — — 75 (1) (1)
Balance at June 29, 2024 500 $ 482 146,269 $ $ 2,276 $ 881 $ (242) 6,033 § (103) $ 3,294
Balance at January 1, 2023 — 3 — 146,222 § $ 2,176 $ 600 $ (212) 2,050 $ 35 $ 2,529

Net income — — — — 107 — — — 107

Other comprehensive income, net of tax — — — — — 28 — — 28

Common stock issuance, net of shares withheld

for taxes — — 1,427 — 3 — — 852 (15) (12)

Stock-based compensation expense — — — 25 — — — — 25
Balance at July 1, 2023 — 3 — 147,649 § $ 2,204 $ 707 $ (184) 2,902 $ 50) $ 2,677

Refer to accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Operations

Resideo Technologies, Inc. (“Resideo”, the “Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our”) is a leading manufacturer and developer of technology-driven products that
provide critical comfort, energy, smoke and carbon monoxide detection home safety products and security solutions to homes globally. We are also a leading
wholesale distributor of low-voltage security products including access control, fire detection, fire suppression, security, and video products, and participate
significantly in the broader related markets of audio, communications, data communications, networking, power, ProAV, smart home, and wire and cable. Our
global footprint serves both commercial and residential end markets.

Basis of Consolidation and Reporting

The accompanying Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with United States (“U.S.”) generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, the Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements do not include all of the information and notes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of
management, the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included herein contain all adjustments, which consist of normal recurring adjustments,
necessary to fairly present our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods indicated. Operating results for the period from January 1,
2024 through June 29, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.

For additional information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2023 (the “2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K”), filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on
February 14, 2024 as reclassified in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 4, 2024 to reflect the impacts of certain corporate functions being
decentralized to align with the business strategy. Refer to Note 4. Segment Financial Data for additional information.

Reporting Period

We report financial information on a fiscal quarter basis using a modified four-four-five week calendar. Our fiscal calendar begins on January 1 and ends on
December 31. We have elected the first, second and third quarters to end on a Saturday in order to not disrupt business processes. The effects of this election
are generally not significant to reported results for any quarter and only exist within a reporting year.

Reclassification

For the purpose of comparability, certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current period classification. Refer to Note 4. Segment
Financial Data for additional information on reclassified corporate expenses to the segments.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Our significant accounting policies are detailed in Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2023. There have been no significant changes to these policies that have had a material impact on the Unaudited Consolidated Financial

Statements and the accompanying disclosure notes for the six months ended June 29, 2024.

We consider the applicability and impact of all recent accounting standards updates (“ASUs”) issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
and U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) rules and disclose only those that may have a material impact.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. This ASU requires
entities to disclose, on an annual and interim basis, significant segment expenses that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
and included within each reported measure of segment profit or loss. The ASU also requires disclosure of the name and title of the CODM. The guidance is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. We do not expect
adoption of the standard to have a material impact.

Note 3. Acquisitions
On June 14, 2024, we acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding equity of Snap One for an aggregate purchase price of $1.4 billion. This acquisition aligns
with our strategic objective to expand our distribution network, market presence, and product portfolio within the smart home and audio-visual sectors

enhancing our competitive positioning in the industry. The business is included within the ADI Global Distribution segment.

The following table presents the preliminary purchase price allocation at estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition:

(in millions)
Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 47
Accounts receivable 49
Inventories 250
Other current assets 32
Property, plant and equipment 63
Goodwill V 393
Intangible assets 770
Other assets 69
Total assets acquired 1,673
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable 48
Accrued liabilities 73
Other liabilities 147
Total liabilities assumed 268
Net assets acquired $ 1,405

(M Goodwill from this acquisition is partially deductible for tax purposes.

The Company expensed approximately $34 million of costs related to the acquisition of Snap One during the six months ended June 29, 2024. These costs are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and consist primarily of advisory,
insurance and legal fees. The Company assumed $21 million of seller success fees, which were paid upon the closing of the acquisition.

Snap One’s contribution in the period post-acquisition to net revenue and operating income was not material. On a pro forma basis assuming the acquisition
occurred at the beginning of the reported period, Resideo’s net revenue for the three and six months ended June 29, 2024 would have been $1,804 million and
$3,536 million, respectively. The pro forma operating income would not have been materially different than the amounts reported for both periods.

Note 4. Segment Financial Data

The Company’s segment information is evaluated by our Chief Executive Officer, who is also the CODM, and is consistent with how management reviews and
assesses the performance of the business as well as makes investing and resource
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

allocation decisions. We monitor our operations through our two reportable segments: Products and Solutions and ADI Global Distribution, and report
Corporate separately.

These operating segments follow the same accounting policies used for the financial statements. We evaluate a segment’s performance on a U.S. GAAP basis,
primarily operating income before corporate expenses.

Products and Solutions—The Products and Solutions business is a leading global manufacturer and developer of technology-driven products and components
that provide critical comfort, energy management, and safety and security solutions to over 150 million homes globally. Our offerings include temperature and
humidity control, thermal water and air solutions, as well as security panels, sensors, peripherals, communications devices, video cameras, other home-related
lifestyle convenience solutions, cloud infrastructure, installation and maintenance tools, and related software.

ADI Global Distribution—The ADI Global Distribution business is a leading wholesale distributor of low-voltage security products including security and
life safety, access control and video products and participates significantly in the broader related markets of smart home, power, audio, ProAV, networking,
communications, wire and cable, and data communications. The Snap One business is included in the ADI Global Distribution segment and expands our
distribution into and reach with smart-living products, services, and software.

Corporate—On January 1, 2024, certain corporate functions were decentralized into the operating segments aligning with the business strategy. Functional
expenses related to information technology, finance, tax, business development, and research and development are now recorded within the Products and
Solutions and ADI Global Distribution segments. For the three and six months ended July 1, 2023, $13 million and $25 million of corporate expenses have
been reclassified into the Products and Solutions segment while $8 million and $16 million of corporate expenses have been reclassified into the ADI Global
Distribution segment, respectively, decreasing reported Income from Operations to conform to the current year presentation.

Corporate expenses include costs related to the corporate office such as the executive function, legal, accounting, tax, treasury, corporate development, human
resources, and information technology. Additionally, unallocated amounts for non-operating items such as Reimbursement Agreement expense, interest income

(expense), other income (expense) and provision for income taxes are reported within Corporate.

The following table represents summary financial data attributable to the segments:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Net revenue
Products and Solutions $ 630 $ 677 $ 1,250 $ 1,335
ADI Global Distribution 959 925 1,825 1,816
Total net revenue $ 1,589 $ 1,602 $ 3,075 $ 3,151
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Income from operations
Products and Solutions $ 130 $ 115 $ 242§ 220
ADI Global Distribution 62 71 111 135
Corporate (70) 33) (103) (64)
Total income from operations $ 122§ 153§ 250§ 291

The Company’s CODM does not use segment assets information to allocate resources or to assess performance of the segments and therefore, total segment
assets have not been disclosed.

Note 5. Revenue Recognition

11
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

We have two operating segments, Products and Solutions and ADI Global Distribution. Disaggregated revenue information for Products and Solutions is
presented by product grouping, while ADI Global Distribution is presented by region. Effective in the second quarter of 2024, the disaggregated regional
revenue within ADI Global Distribution were consolidated into two regions, Americas and International. The Snap One revenues are included within the ADI
Global Distribution disaggregated regions.

The following table presents revenue by business line and geographic location, as we believe this presentation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of net revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Products and Solutions
Safety and Security $ 227 $ 248 $ 440 $ 476
Air 214 218 405 429
Energy 118 132 252 268
Water 71 79 153 162
Total Products and Solutions 630 677 1,250 1,335
ADI Global Distribution
Americas 840 806 1,586 1,574
International @ 119 119 239 242
Total ADI Global Distribution 959 925 1,825 1,816
Total net revenue $ 1,589 $ 1,602 $ 3,075 $ 3,151
(" Americas represents North, Central, and South America.
@ International represents all geographies that are not included in Americas.
Note 6. Restructuring
The following table represents restructuring expense attributable to the segments:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Products and Solutions $ — 5 — § 59 2
ADI Global Distribution — 2 2 2
Corporate — — — —
Restructuring expenses $ — § RS 7 8 4

We took actions to align our cost structure with the Company’s strategic objectives and our outlook of market conditions. The intent of these actions is to lower
costs, increase margins, and position us for long-term growth. We expect to fully execute on our restructuring programs over the next 12 to 24 months, and we
may incur future additional restructuring expenses associated with these or from new plans. We are unable at this time to make a good faith determination of
cost estimates, or ranges of cost estimates, associated with future phases of the programs or the total costs we may incur in connection with these programs.
Refer to Note 6. Restructuring Expenses in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion of our restructuring programs.
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The following table summarizes the status of our restructuring expenses included within accrued liabilities on the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Six Months
Ended Twelve Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Beginning of period $ 30 $ 27
Charges 7 34
Usage () (18) (€2))
End of period $ 19 $ 30

(1) Usage primarily relates to cash payments associated with employee termination costs.
Note 7. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

On June 14, 2024, in connection with our acquisition of Snap One, we issued 500,000 shares of Series A Cumulative Convertible Participating Preferred Stock
(“Preferred Stock™) to Clayton, Dubilier & Rice (“CD&R”) for an aggregate purchase price of $500 million, or $0.001 per share pursuant to an investment
agreement dated April 15, 2024. In connection with the issuance of the Preferred Stock, we incurred direct and incremental expenses of $18 million. These
direct and incremental expenses reduced the Preferred Stock carrying value.

The Preferred Stock is convertible perpetual participating preferred stock of the Company, with an initial conversion price equal to $26.92, and accrues
dividends at a rate of 7% per annum, payable in cash or in kind. The Preferred Stock votes on an as-converted basis together with common stockholders. The
Preferred Stock had a liquidation preference of $500 million as of June 29, 2024. Preferred stock dividends payable totaling $2 million were included in
accrued liabilities as of June 29, 2024.

The Preferred Stock can be converted into our common stock at the holder’s option at any time. We can also force conversion if at any time our common stock
trading price exceeds 200% of the then-effective conversion price for at least 20 out of 30 trailing trading days. Following the third anniversary of the closing
date, we have the option to redeem the Preferred Stock for an aggregate redemption price equal to two times the sum of the Accumulated Amount (as defined in
the Certificate of Designations) plus any interim accrued and unpaid dividends (calculated at 1X instead of 2X) on such share of Preferred Stock in effect at the
time of redemption. In the event of a change of control, we will have the option to purchase all of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock at a price per share
equal to the 150% of the sum of the Accumulated Amount plus any interim accrued and unpaid dividends (calculated at 100% instead of 150%) on such share
of Preferred Stock in effect at the time of such purchase.

Note 8. Stock-Based Compensation Plans

A summary of awards granted follows:

Six Months Ended June 29, 2024 Six Months Ended July 1, 2023
Number of Stock Weighted average grant Number of Stock Weighted average grant
Units Granted date fair value per share Units Granted date fair value per share
Performance Stock Units (“PSUs”) @ 575,249 $ 27.96 553,071 $ 29.89
Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) 3,897,778 $ 19.57 1,481,793 $ 19.01

(M Includes 2 million RSUs granted as part of the Snap One acquisition for a fair value of $43 million of which $17 million was included in purchase consideration.
@ Includes PSUs at target payout. Final common shares issued may be different based upon the actual achievement versus the performance measure target.

Stock-based compensation expense, net of tax was $15 million and $29 million for the three and six months ended June 29,
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

2024, respectively. For the three and six months ended July 1, 2023, stock-based compensation expense, net of tax was $12 million and $24 million,
respectively.

Note 9. Inventories, net

The following table summarizes the details of our inventories, net.

(in millions) June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Raw materials $ 91 § 221
Work in process 14 18
Finished products 983 702
Total inventories, net $ 1,188 § 941

Note 10. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, net

Our goodwill balance and changes in carrying value by segment are as follows:

Products and ADI Global

(in millions) Solutions Distribution Total
Balance at January 1, 2024 $ 2,045 $ 660 $ 2,705

Acquisitions (V — 393 393

Impact of foreign currency translation (14) (5) 19
Balance at June 29, 2024 $ 2,031 § 1,048 $ 3,079
() Please refer to Note 3. Acquisitions for additional information.
The following table summarizes the net carrying amount of intangible assets:
(in millions) June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Intangible assets subject to amortization $ 1,038 § 281
Indefinite-lived intangible assets 180 180

Total intangible assets $ 1,218 § 461
Intangible assets subject to amortization consisted of the following:

June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying

(in millions) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Patents and technology $ 170 $ 30) $ 140 $ 64 $ 26) $ 38
Customer relationships 905 (146) 759 319 (138) 181
Trademarks 79 ®) 71 9 ) 1
Software 205 (137) 68 193 (132) 61

Intangible assets subject to

amortization $ 1,359 § 321) $ 1,038 § 585 § (304) $ 281

Intangible assets amortization expense was $13 million and $22 million for the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, respectively, and $10 million and
$19 million for the three and six months ended July 1, 2023.

14
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Resideo Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
Note 11. Leases
Total operating lease costs are as follows:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Operating lease costs:

Cost of goods sold $ 33 583 8 3 10

Selling, general and administrative expenses 15 15 29 29
Total operating lease costs $ 18 § 20§ 37§ 39

Total operating lease costs include variable lease costs of $4 million and $7 million for the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, respectively. For the
three and six months ended July 1, 2023, total operating lease costs include variable lease costs of $6 million and $12 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts of our operating lease assets and liabilities:

(in millions) Financial Statement Line Item June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Operating lease assets Other assets $ 234§ 192
Operating lease liabilities - current Accrued liabilities $ 52 $ 39
Operating lease liabilities - non-current Other liabilities $ 196 $ 166
Supplemental cash flow information related to operating leases follows:
Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Cash paid for operating lease liabilities $ 17 $ 18
Non-cash activities: operating lease assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 6 8 15
Note 12. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt is comprised of the following:
(in millions) June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
4.000% Senior Notes due 2029 $ 300 $ 300
Variable rate A&R Term B Facility 1,714 1,119
Gross debt 2,014 1,419
Less: current portion of long-term debt (12) (12)
Less: unamortized deferred financing costs (23) (11)
Total long-term debt $ 1,979 $ 1,396

A&R Senior Credit Facilities

On February 12, 2021, we entered into an Amendment and Restatement Agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. as administrative agent (the “A&R
Credit Agreement”). The A&R Credit Agreement provides for an initial seven-year senior secured term B loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of $950
million. In March 2022, we amended the agreement adding $200 million in additional term loans with a maturity date of February 1, 2028. Additionally, in
June 2024 we further amended the agreement adding $600 million of term loans with a maturity date May 14, 2031 to partially finance our acquisition of Snap
One (the “A&R Term B Facility”). Included in the A&R Term B Facility is a five-year senior secured revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount
of $500 million (the “A&R Revolving Credit Facility”
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and, together with the A&R Term B Facility, the “A&R Senior Credit Facilities”). In June 2024, we also extended the term of our A&R Revolving Credit
Facility for a new five-year term.

In May 2024, the A&R Term B Facility was repriced by (i) reducing the interest rate margin from 2.25% to 2.00%, (ii) eliminating the SOFR credit spread
adjustment, and (iii) reducing the SOFR floor from 0.50% to 0%.

During the third quarter of 2024, we issued $600 million in aggregate principal of 6.500% Senior Notes due 2032 (the “Notes™). The issue price of the Notes
was equal to 100% of the principal amount. The net proceeds from the Notes were used to repay $596 million principal amount of outstanding indebtedness
under the Company’s senior secured Term B loans maturing on February 21, 2028. Refer to Note 19. Subsequent Events.

At June 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the weighted average interest rate for the A&R Term B Facility, excluding the effect of the interest rate swaps, was
7.34% and 7.72%, respectively. There were $5 million letters of credit issued under the A&R Revolving Credit Facility with no outstanding borrowings. As of
June 29, 2024, we were in compliance with all covenants related to the A&R Senior Credit Facilities.

We entered into certain interest rate swap agreements in March 2021, which were amended in June 2023 to transition from a hedge of LIBOR-based cash flows
to a hedge of SOFR-based cash flows. These interest rate swap agreements effectively convert a portion of our variable-rate debt to fixed rate debt.
Additionally, we acquired an interest rate cap as part of the Snap One acquisition which caps the interest on a portion of our variable rate debt. Refer to Note
13. Derivative Financial Instruments for further discussion.

Senior Notes due 2029

On August 26, 2021, we issued $300 million in principal amount of 4.00% Senior Notes due 2029 (the “Senior Notes due 2029”). The Senior Notes due 2029
are senior unsecured obligations guaranteed by the Company’s existing and future domestic subsidiaries and rank equally with all senior unsecured debt and
senior to all subordinated debt.

Refer to Note 11. Long-Term Debt in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion.
Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments

In March 2021, we entered into eight interest rate swap agreements (“Swap Agreements”) with several financial institutions for a combined notional value of
$560 million. The Swap Agreements were entered into to reduce the consolidated interest rate risk associated with variable rate, long-term debt.

During 2023, we modified the Swap Agreements blending the asset positions of the original interest rate swap agreements into new interest swap agreements
and extending the term of our hedged positions. The new pay-fixed interest rate swap agreements qualify as hybrid instruments in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification 815, Derivatives and Hedging, consisting of financing components and embedded at-market derivatives that were designated as cash
flow hedges. We also amended the Swap Agreements to transition from a hedge of LIBOR-based cash flows to a hedge of SOFR-based cash flows.

Refer to Note 12.Derivative Financial Instruments in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion.

As part of our acquisition of Snap One, we acquired an interest rate cap with a notional of $346 million and a strike rate of 4.79%, which effectively caps
SOFR on the notional amount at that rate (the “Interest Rate Cap”). We are required to pay a premium of $7 million at the maturity date of December 31, 2025.
The Interest Rate Cap qualifies as a hybrid instrument consisting of a financing component and an embedded at-market derivative that was designated as a cash
flow hedge on our A&R Term B Facility as of the Snap One acquisition date.

The Swap Agreements and Interest Rate Cap (referred to collectively as “interest rate derivatives™) are adjusted to fair value on a quarterly basis. The following

tables summarizes the fair value and presentation of derivative instruments in the Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets as well as the changes in fair value
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
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Fair Value of Derivative Assets

(in millions) Financial Statement Line Item June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate derivatives Other current assets $ 19 $ 20
Interest rate derivatives Other assets 8 10
Total derivative assets designated as hedging instruments $ 27§ 30

Fair Value of Derivative Liabilities

(in millions) Financial Statement Line Item June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate derivatives Other liabilities $ 6 $ —
Total derivative liabilities designated as hedging instruments $ 6 $ —
Unrealized gain Accumulated other comprehensive loss  § 20 S 25

The following table summarizes the effect of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges in other comprehensive income and the Unaudited
Consolidated Statements of Operations:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Gains recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss, beginning of
period $ 24 3 35§ 25§ 42
Current period gain (loss) recognized in/reclassified from other
comprehensive income 4) 13 3) 7
Gains reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to net
income o (3) (2 &)
Gains recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss, end of period $ 20§ 40 $ 20§ 40

Unrealized gains expected to be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss in the next 12 months are estimated to be $19 million as of June 29,
2024.

Note 14. Fair Value

The estimated fair value of our financial instruments held, and when applicable, issued to finance our operations, is summarized below. Certain estimates and
judgments were required to develop the fair value amounts. The fair value amounts shown below are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that we would
realize upon disposition, nor do they indicate our intent or ability to dispose of the financial instrument. Assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value are
required to be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1—quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
Level 2—observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data

Level 3—unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data

Financial and non-financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. There were no changes in the methodologies used in our valuation practices as of June 29, 2024,
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The fair values of long-term debt instruments were determined using quoted market prices in inactive markets or discounted cash flows based upon current
observable market interest rates and therefore were classified as Level 2 measurements in the fair value hierarchy.

The following table provides a summary of the carrying amount and fair value of outstanding debt:

June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
(in millions) Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Debt
4.000% Senior Notes due 2029 $ 300 § 265 $ 300 S 266
Variable rate A&R Term B Facility 1,714 1,717 1,119 1,122
Total debt $ 2,014 § 1,982 § 1,419 § 1,388

Refer to Note 12. Long-Term Debt to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Interest Rate Risk—We have exposure to movements in interest rates associated with cash and borrowings. We have entered, and in the future may enter, into
various interest rate protection agreements in order to limit the impact of movements in interest rates. The fair values of interest rate swaps have been
determined based on market value equivalents at the balance sheet date, taking into account the current interest rate environment and therefore, were classified
as Level 2 measurements in the fair value hierarchy.

The following table provides a summary of the carrying amount and fair value of our interest rate derivatives:

June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
(in millions) Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Assets:
Interest rate derivatives $ 27§ 27 3 30 3 30
Liabilities:
Interest rate derivatives 6 6 — —
Total, net $ 21 $ 21 $ 30 $ 30

Refer to Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

There are no material Level 1 or Level 3 assets or liabilities for the periods presented. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
other current assets, accounts payable, accrued liabilities approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of these amounts.

Note 15. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
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(in millions) June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Obligations payable under Indemnification Agreements $ 140 3 140
Customer rebate reserve 88 104
Compensation, benefit and other employee-related 74 110
Current operating lease liability 52 39
Deferred revenue 28 4
Product warranties 28 24
Freight payable 26 25
Other ¥ 166 162

Total accrued liabilities $ 602 $ 608

(1 Other includes accruals for advertising, legal and professional reserves, taxes, interest, restructuring, royalties and other miscellaneous items.
Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies
Environmental Matters

We are subject to various federal, state, local, and foreign government requirements relating to the protection of the environment and accrue costs related to
environmental matters when it is probable that we have incurred a liability related to a contaminated site and the amount can be reasonably estimated. We
believe that, as a general matter, our policies, practices and procedures are properly designed to prevent unreasonable risk of environmental damage and
personal injury and that our handling, manufacture, use and disposal of hazardous substances are in accordance with environmental and safety laws and
regulations. We have incurred remedial response and voluntary cleanup costs for site contamination and are a party to claims associated with environmental
and safety matters, including products containing hazardous substances. Additional claims and costs involving environmental matters are likely to continue to
arise in the future.

Environment-related expenses for sites owned and operated by us are presented within cost of goods sold for operating sites. For the six months ended June 29,
2024 and July 1, 2023, environmental expenses related to these operating sites were not material. Liabilities for environmental costs were $22 million at
June 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

Obligations Payable Under Indemnification Agreements
The Reimbursement Agreement and the Tax Matters Agreement (collectively, the “Indemnification Agreements”) are further described below.
Reimbursement Agreement

We separated from Honeywell International Inc. (“Honeywell””) on October 29, 2018, becoming an independent publicly traded company as a result of a pro
rata distribution of our common stock to shareholders of Honeywell (the “Spin-off”). In connection with the Spin-Off, we entered into a reimbursement
agreement, pursuant to which we have an obligation to make cash payments to Honeywell in amounts equal to 90% of payments for certain Honeywell
environmental-liability payments (the “Reimbursement Agreement”) which include amounts billed (payments), less 90% of Honeywell’s net insurance receipts
relating to such liabilities, and less 90% of the net proceeds received by Honeywell in connection with (i) affirmative claims relating to such liabilities, (ii)
contributions by other parties relating to such liabilities and (iii) certain property sales (the recoveries). The Reimbursement Agreement extends until the earlier
of (1) December 31, 2043; or (2) December 31 of the third consecutive anniversary where the annual reimbursement obligation (including accrued amounts)
has been less than $25 million. While the amount payable by us in respect of such liabilities arising in any given year is subject to a cap of $140 million under
the Reimbursement Agreement, the estimated liability for resolution of pending and future environmental-related liabilities recorded on our balance sheets are
calculated as if we were responsible for 100% of the environmental-liability payments associated with certain sites. Refer to Note 15. Commitments and
Contingencies in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion.
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Tax Matters Agreement

In connection with the Spin-Off, we entered into the Tax Matters Agreement with Honeywell, pursuant to which we are responsible and will indemnify
Honeywell for certain taxes, including certain income taxes, sales taxes, VAT and payroll taxes, relating to the business for all periods, including periods prior
to the consummation of the Spin-Off. In addition, the Tax Matters Agreement addresses the allocation of liability for taxes that are incurred as a result of
restructuring activities undertaken to effectuate the Spin-Off.

We are required to indemnify Honeywell for any taxes resulting from the failure of the Spin-Off and related internal transactions to qualify for their intended
tax treatment under U.S. federal, state and local income tax law, as well as foreign tax law, where such taxes result from our action or omission not permitted

by the Separation and Distribution Agreement between Honeywell and Resideo dated as of October 19, 2018 or the Tax Matters Agreement.

The following table summarizes information concerning the Reimbursement and Tax Matter Agreements’ liabilities:

Reimbursement Tax Matters
(in millions) Agreement Agreement Total
Balance as of January 1, 2024 $ 652 $ 97 § 749
Accruals for liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable 90 — 90
Payments to Honeywell (70) 4) (74)
Balance as of June 29, 2024 $ 672 $ 93 8 765

The liabilities related to the Reimbursement and Tax Matters Agreements are included in the following balance sheet accounts:

(in millions) June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023

Accrued liabilities $ 140 $ 140

Obligations payable under Indemnification Agreements 625 609
Total indemnification liabilities $ 765 $ 749

For the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, net expenses related to the Reimbursement Agreement were $47 million and $90 million, respectively. For
the three and six months ended July 1, 2023, net expenses related to the Reimbursement Agreement were $44 million and $85 million, respectively.

We do not currently possess sufficient information to reasonably estimate the amounts of indemnification liabilities to be recorded upon future completion of
studies, litigation or settlements, and neither the timing nor the amount of the ultimate costs associated with such indemnification liability payments can be
determined although they could be material to our consolidated results of operations and operating cash flows in the periods recognized or paid.

Independent of our payments under the Reimbursement Agreement, we will have ongoing liability for certain environmental claims, which are part of our
ongoing business.

Other Matters

We are subject to lawsuits, investigations and disputes arising out of the conduct of our business, including matters relating to commercial transactions,
government contracts, product liability, acquisitions and divestitures, employee matters, intellectual property, and environmental, health, and safety matters. We
recognize a liability for any contingency that is probable of occurrence and reasonably estimable. We continually assess the likelihood of adverse judgments or
outcomes in these matters, as well as potential ranges of possible losses, based on a careful analysis of each matter with the assistance of outside legal counsel
and, if applicable, other experts. No such matters are material to our financial statements. Refer to Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies in our 2023
Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion of these matters.
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On June 28, 2023, Lisset Tredo, a Company employee, filed a putative class action complaint in the San Diego County Superior Court on behalf of all non-
exempt employees in California, in which she alleged violations by the Company of the California Labor Code related to sick leave pay, accurate wage
statements, recordkeeping, and pay timing, and on August 28, 2023 she filed a first amended complaint adding a claim under the California Private Attorneys
General Act (“PAGA”).

The parties executed a Class Action and PAGA Settlement Agreement on or about June 3, 2024 in which they agreed, subject to Court approval, to settle the
entire action for a gross amount of $0.3 million. As part of the settlement, the Company denied all liability and the claims against it will be released.

Warranties and Guarantees

In the normal course of business, we issue product warranties and product performance guarantees. We accrue for the estimated cost of product warranties and
product performance guarantees based on contract terms and historical experience at the time of sale. Adjustments to initial obligations for warranties and
guarantees are made as changes to the obligations become reasonably estimable. Product warranties and product performance guarantees are included in
accrued and other liabilities. The following table summarizes information concerning recorded obligations for product warranties and product performance
guarantees:

Six Months
Ended Twelve Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 December 31, 2023
Beginning balance $ 34 § 48
Accruals for warranties/guarantees issued/acquired during the period 18 24
Settlement of warranty/guarantee claims (12) (38)
Ending balance $ 40 34

Note 17. Income Taxes

For interim periods, income tax is equal to the total of (1) year-to-date pretax income multiplied by the forecasted effective tax rate plus (2) tax expense items
specific to the period. In situations where we expect to report losses and where we do not expect to receive tax benefits, we apply separate forecast effective tax
rates to those jurisdictions rather than including them in the consolidated forecast effective tax rate.

For the three and six months ended June 29, 2024, the net tax expense was $29 million and $59 million, respectively, and for the three and six months ended
July 1, 2023, net tax expense was $44 million and $68 million, respectively, and consists primarily of interim period tax expense based on year-to-date pretax
income multiplied by our forecasted effective tax rate. In addition to items specific to the period, our income tax rate is impacted by the mix of earnings across
the jurisdictions in which we operate, non-deductible expenses, and U.S. taxation of foreign earnings.
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Note 18. Earnings Per Common Share

The reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used for the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions, except per share data) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per common share:
Net income $ 30§ 50 § 73 S 107
Less: preferred stock dividends 2 — 2 —
Net income available to common stockholders $ 28§ 50§ 71 $ 107
Denominator for basic and diluted earnings per common share:
Weighted average basic number of common shares outstanding 146 147 146 147
Plus: dilutive effect of common stock equivalents 3 2 2 2
Weighted average diluted number of common shares outstanding 149 149 148 149
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 0.19 §$ 034 § 049 § 0.73
Diluted $ 0.19 § 034 § 048 § 0.72

Diluted earnings per common share is computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period plus the dilutive effect
of common stock equivalents using the if-converted and treasury stock method with the average market price of our common stock for the period.

The following potentially dilutive instruments, presented as a weighted average of the instruments outstanding, were excluded from the calculation of diluted
net income per common share because their effect would have been antidilutive, and in the case of certain PSUs, the contingency has not been satisfied.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
RSUs and other rights 0.7 2.1 0.7 1.7
PSUs 0.9 0.9 1.1 0.8
Preferred stock 0.1 — — —

Note 19. Subsequent Events

On July 17, 2024, we issued $600 million in aggregate principal of 6.500% Senior Notes due 2032 (the “Notes”). The issue price of the Notes was equal to
100% of the principal amount. The net proceeds from the Notes were used to repay $596 million principal amount of outstanding indebtedness under the
Company’s senior secured Term B loans maturing on February 21, 2028.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included herein under “Item 1. Financial
Statements.” and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” (“MD&A”) included in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (“Quarterly Report”) contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. These statements can be identified by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts, but rather are based on current
expectations, estimates, assumptions and projections about our industries and our business and financial results. Forward-looking statements often include
words such as “anticipates,” “estimates,” “expects,” “projects,” “forecasts,” “intends,” “plans,” “continues,” “believes,” “may,” “will,” “goals” and words and
terms of similar substance in connection with discussions of future operating or financial performance. This Quarterly Report includes industry and market data
that we obtained from various third-party sources, including forecasts based upon such data; as with any projection or forecast, forward-looking statements are
inherently susceptible to uncertainty and changes in circumstances. Our actual results may vary materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-
looking statements. Accordingly, undue reliance should not be placed on any forward-looking statement made by us or on our behalf. Although we believe that
the forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report are based on reasonable assumptions, you should be aware that many factors could affect our
actual financial results or results of operations and could cause actual results to differ materially from those in such forward-looking statements, including but
not limited to:
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*  competition from other companies in our markets and segments, as well as in new markets and emerging markets;

*  compatibility and ease of integration with third-party products and services, outside of our control;

e our ability to identify consumer preferences and industry standards, develop and protect intellectual property related thereto, and successfully market
new technologies, products, and services to consumers;

*  our reliance on independent integrators to sell and install our solutions;

*  our reliance on certain suppliers;

»  the impact of disruptions in our supply chain from third-party suppliers and manufacturers, including our inability to obtain necessary raw materials
and product components, production equipment or replacement parts;

*  inability to consummate acquisitions on satisfactory terms or to integrate such acquisitions effectively;

* the impact of earthquakes, hurricanes, fires, power outages, floods, pandemics, epidemics, natural disasters and other catastrophic events or other
public health emergencies;

» the impact of potentially volatile global market and economic conditions and industry and end market cyclicality, including factors such as interest
rates, inflation, energy costs, availability of financing, consumer spending habits and preferences, housing market changes, and employment rates;

« failure to achieve and maintain a high level of product and service quality, including the impact of warranty claims, product recalls, and product
liability actions that may be brought against us;

*  our ability to retain or expand relationships with significant customers;

» the significant failure or inability to comply with specifications and manufacturing requirements or delays or other problems with existing or new
products or inability to meet price requirements;

* inability to successfully execute transformation programs or to effectively manage our workforce;

» the failure to increase productivity through sustainable operational improvements;

*  economic, political, regulatory, foreign exchange and other risks of international operations;

*  our dependence upon information technology infrastructure and network operations having adequate cyber-security functionality;

* the potential adverse impacts of enhanced tariff, import/export restrictions, or other trade barriers on global economic conditions, financial markets
and our business;

*  risks associated with the Reimbursement Agreement, the other agreements we entered into with Honeywell in connection with the Spin-Off, and our
relationships with Honeywell, including our reliance on Honeywell for the Honeywell Home trademark and potential material environmental
liabilities;

» regulations and societal actions to respond to global climate change;

» failure to comply with the broad range of current and future standards, laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate;
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» the impact of potential material litigation matters, government proceedings, and other contingencies and uncertainties;

*  our ability to borrow funds and access capital markets in light of the terms of our debt documents or otherwise;

e provisions in our governing documents discouraging takeovers;

*  our ability to recruit and retain qualified personnel;

» currency exchange rate, stock price, and effective tax rate fluctuations;

»  the CD&R Stockholder's interest in and influence over us that may diverge from, or event conflict with, interests of the holders of our common stock,
and the reduction in the relative voting power of holders of our common stock resulting from the issuance of preferred stock;

* our ability to maintain effective internal controls, deliver timely financial statements, and avoid the financial statements to become impaired and
damage public opinion, including the process we are currently undertaking to assess the internal controls over financial reporting of Snap One, which
had disclosed a material weakness at the time we acquired the business;

* impairment of other intangible assets and long-lived assets;

*  Dbeing required to make significant cash contributions to our defined benefit pension plans; and

*  other risks detailed under the caption “Risk Factors” in this Quarterly Report, in Part I, Item 1A, in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K, and other
filings we make with the SEC.

There have been no material changes to the risk factors described in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K. These risks could cause actual results to differ
materially from those implied by forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report. Even if our results of operations, financial condition and liquidity and
the development of the industries in which we operate are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report, those results or
developments may not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods.

Any forward-looking statements made by us in this Quarterly Report speak only as of the date on which they are made. We are under no obligation to and
expressly disclaim any obligation to, update or alter our forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, subsequent events or otherwise.
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Overview and Business Trends

We are a leading global manufacturer and distributor of technology-driven products and solutions that help homeowners and businesses stay connected and in
control of their comfort, security and energy use. We are a leader in the home heating, ventilation and air conditioning controls markets, smoke and carbon
monoxide detection home safety and fire suppression products, and security markets. We have a global footprint serving commercial and residential end-
markets. We manage our business operations through two operating segments, Products and Solutions and ADI Global Distribution. The Products and
Solutions operating segment, consistent with our industry, has a higher gross and operating profit profile in comparison to the ADI Global Distribution
operating segment. In the second quarter of 2024, we expanded the business through the acquisition of Snap One, which has been incorporated into the ADI
Global Distribution segment. The acquisition expands our distribution into and reach with smart-living products, services, and software.

Our Products and Solutions operating segment offerings include temperature and humidity control, energy products and solutions, water and air solutions,
smoke and carbon monoxide detection home safety products, security panels, sensors, peripherals, wire and cable, communications devices, video cameras,
other home-related lifestyle convenience solutions, cloud infrastructure, installation and maintenance tools, and related software.

Our ADI Global Distribution business is a leading wholesale distributor of low-voltage security products including access control, fire detection, fire
suppression, security, and video products and participates significantly in the broader related markets of audio, communications, data communications,
networking, power, ProAV, smart home, and wire and cable. Our ADI Global Distribution strategy is focused on growth in our omni-channel presence,
expansion into adjacent markets, and continued enhancements to our value-add services to support our professional installers’ efficiency and profitability.

Our financial performance is influenced by macroeconomic factors such as repair and remodeling activity, residential and non-residential construction, new and
existing home sales, employment rates, interest rates and bank lending standards, supply chain dynamics, and the overall macroeconomic environment. The
ongoing uncertainty and volatility in the global macroeconomic conditions have affected and could continue to affect our visibility toward future performance.
While supply chain and logistics continue to normalize over 2024, customer demand continues to moderate as inventories rebalance over the period and
uncertainties remain including the potential for changes in inflation and interest rates, increased labor costs, reduced consumer spending due to softening labor
markets, elevated mortgage rates, unfavorable foreign currency impacts from a stronger U.S. dollar, and potential market and other disruption from the ongoing
conflict between Russia and Ukraine as well as the Middle East crisis between Hamas and Israel.

Current Period Highlights

*  We completed the acquisition of Snap One, expanding our distribution into and reach with smart-living products, services, and software.

* Netrevenue of $1.59 billion, down 0.8% from $1.60 billion in the second quarter of 2023

e Income from operations of $122 million, or 7.7% of revenue, compared to $153 million, or 9.6% of revenue in the second quarter of 2023

+  Fully diluted earnings per common share of $0.19, compared to $0.34 per common share in the second quarter of 2023

e Cash Flow From Operations of $92 million in the second quarter of 2024, compared to $121 million in the second quarter of 2023

Outlook

Expectations for key macro trends expected to impact our business for the full year include residential repair and remodel activity flat to down low-single-
digits year-over-year, and residential new construction starts expected to grow low to mid single digits. We expect ADI’s key commercial markets to be flat to

up low-single-digits with continued headwinds in residential focused markets. We expect these trends to support our 2024 year-over-year revenue outlook of
flat to down low single-digits.
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Results of Operations

The following table represents results of operations on a consolidated basis for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
(in millions, except per share data and percentages) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023
Net revenue $ 1,589 $ 1,602 $ 3,075 $ 3,151
Cost of goods sold 1,142 1,166 2,228 2,295
Gross profit 447 436 847 856
Gross profit % 28.1% 27.2% 27.5 % 27.2%
Operating expenses:
Research and development expenses 21 29 46 56
Selling, general and administrative expenses 280 242 511 486
Intangible asset amortization 13 10 22 19
Restructuring, impairment and extinguishment costs, net 11 2 18 4
Total operating expenses 325 283 597 565
Income from operations 122 153 250 291
Other expenses, net 48 42 90 82
Interest expense, net 15 17 28 34
Income before taxes 59 94 132 175
Provision for income taxes 29 44 59 68
Net income $ 30 $ 50 $ 73 $ 107
Earnings per common share:
Basic $ 0.19 $ 034 $ 0.49 $ 0.73
Diluted $ 0.19 $ 034 3 0.48 $ 0.72

Net Revenue
Three months ended

Net revenue for the three months ended June 29, 2024 was $1,589 million, a decrease of $13 million, or 0.8%, from the same period in 2023, due to $33
million of lower sales from the divestiture of the Genesis business during the fourth quarter of 2023, lower sales volume of $16 million, unfavorable price
impacts of $10 million at the ADI Global Distribution segment, and unfavorable foreign currency fluctuations of $6 million. The decrease was partially offset
by $45 million of revenues from Snap One and price increases of $8 million at the Product and Solutions segment.

Six months ended
Net revenue for the six months ended June 29, 2024 was $3,075 million a decrease of $76 million, or 2.4%, from the same period in 2023, driven by $68
million of lower sales from the divestiture of the Genesis business during the fourth quarter of 2023, lower sales volume of $53 million, unfavorable price

impacts of $14 million at the ADI Global Distribution segment and unfavorable foreign currency fluctuations of $3 million. The decrease was partially offset
by $45 million of revenues from Snap One and price increases of $17 million at the Product and Solutions segment.
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Gross Profit

Three months ended

The chart below presents the drivers of the gross profit variance from the three months ended July 1, 2023 to the three months ended June 29, 2024.
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Gross profit of $447 million increased $11 million and gross margin of 28.1% was up 90 basis points (“bps”) as compared to the same period in 2023. The
change in gross margin was driven by favorable manufacturing costs of 140 bps, favorable pricing of 40 bps and favorable impacts from acquisitions, net of the

Genesis divestiture of 60 bps, which was partially offset by unfavorable margin mix shift of 180 bps.
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Six months ended

The chart below presents the drivers of the gross profit variance from the six months ended July 1, 2023 to the six months ended June 29, 2024.
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Gross profit $847 million decreased $9 million and gross margin of 27.5% was up 38 basis points (“bps”) as compared to the same period in 2023. The change
in gross margin was driven by favorable manufacturing costs of 130 bps, favorable pricing of 50 bps and favorable impacts from acquisitions net of Genesis

divestiture of 50 bps, which was partially offset by unfavorable margin mix shift of 180 bps.
Research and Development Expenses

Three months ended

Research and development expenses for the three months ended June 29, 2024 of $21 million were down $8 million compared with the same period in 2023.
The decrease is primarily due to a $6 million shift in resource allocation to align IT with the Products and Solutions strategy.

Six months ended

Research and development expenses for the six months ended June 29, 2024 of $46 million were down $10 million compared with the same period in 2023.
The decrease is primarily due to an $8 million shift in resource allocation to align IT with the Products and Solutions strategy as well as a reduction in third-

party spend of $2 million.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Three months ended
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Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 29, 2024 were $280 million, an increase of $38 million, or 15.7%, as compared to
the same period in 2023. The increase was primarily driven by acquisition costs of $34 million and $12 million from incremental Snap One operating expenses.
The increase was partially offset by lower employee expenses of $8 million.

Six months ended

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 29, 2024 were $511 million, an increase of $25 million, or 5.1%, as compared to the
same period in 2023. The increase was driven by acquisition costs of $34 million and $12 million from incremental Snap One operating expenses. The increase
was partially offset by lower employee expenses of $21 million.

Intangible Asset Amortization

Three months ended

Intangible asset amortization increased $3 million for the three months ended June 29, 2024 compared with the same period in 2023. The increase was due to
additional amortization expense associated with the new intangibles from the Snap One acquisition.

Six months ended

Intangible asset amortization increased $3 million for the six months ended June 29, 2024 compared with the same period in 2023. The increase was due to
additional amortization expense associated with the new intangibles from the Snap One acquisition

Restructuring, Impairment and Extinguishment Expenses

For the three and six months ended June 29, 2024 we recorded $5 million in impairment expense related to an equity security and $6 million in debt
extinguishment costs as part of the Snap One acquisition. In addition, we continue to take actions to align our cost structure with market conditions. The intent
of these actions is to lower costs, increase margins, and position us for long-term growth. For the three months ended June 29, 2024, we incurred no additional
restructuring expenses compared to $2 million for the three months ended July 1, 2023. We incurred $7 million and $4 million of restructuring expenses for the
six months ended June 29, 2024 and July 1, 2023, respectively. Restructuring expenses primarily related to employee termination costs.

Other Expenses, Net

Three months ended

Other expenses, net consists primarily of Reimbursement Agreement expenses in the amount of $47 million for the three months ended June 29, 2024 as
compared to $44 million of Reimbursement Agreement expenses for the three months ended July 1, 2023.

Six months ended

Other expenses, net consists primarily of Reimbursement Agreement expenses in the amount of $90 million for the six months ended June 29, 2024 as
compared to $85 million of Reimbursement Agreement expenses for the six months ended July 1, 2023.

Interest Expense, Net
Three months ended

Interest expense, net decreased $2 million for the three months ended June 29, 2024 as compared to the same period in 2023, due to higher interest income as a
result of effectively investing excess cash.
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Six months ended

Interest expense, net decreased $6 million for the six months ended June 29, 2024 as compared to the same period in 2023, due to higher interest income as a
result of effectively investing excess cash.

Tax Expense

Three months ended

Income tax expense decreased by $15 million for the three months ended June 29, 2024 compared to the same period in 2023. The effective income tax rate
increased by 230 bps for the three months ended June 29, 2024 compared to the same period in 2023. The changes are primarily driven by lower income before
taxes, the mix of earnings across the jurisdictions in which we operate, relatively fixed non-deductible expenses, and U.S. taxation of foreign earnings.

Six months ended

Income tax expense decreased by $9 million for the six months ended June 29, 2024 compared to the same period in 2023. The effective income tax rate
increased by 580 bps for the six months ended June 29, 2024 compared to the same period in 2023. The changes are primarily driven by lower income before
taxes, the mix of earnings across the jurisdictions in which we operate, relatively fixed non-deductible expenses, and U.S. taxation of foreign earnings.
Segment Results of Operations

On January 1, 2024, certain corporate functions were decentralized into the operating segments aligning with the business strategy. For the three and six
months ended July 1, 2023, $13 million and $25 million of corporate expenses have been reclassified into the Products and Solutions segment while $8 million
and $16 million of corporate expenses have been reclassified into the ADI Global Distribution segment, respectively, decreasing reported Income from
Operations to conform to the current year presentation.

Products and Solutions

Three months ended

The chart below presents net revenue and income from operations for the three months ended June 29, 2024 and July 1, 2023.
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Products and Solutions net revenue decreased $47 million, or 7%, as compared to the same period in 2023, primarily due to $33 million from the divestiture of
the Genesis business during the fourth quarter of 2023, lower sales volume of $16 million and unfavorable foreign currency fluctuations of $5 million. The
decrease was partially offset by price increases of $8 million.
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Income from operations increased $15 million, or 13%, from the same period in 2023, primarily due to lower material, freight and other manufacturing costs of
$29 million, favorable pricing impact of $8 million and lower selling, general and administrative expenses of $7 million. Partially offsetting the favorable
impacts to income from operations was unfavorable mix of $21 million from mix shifts to lower priced products, lower volumes of $4 million and $5 million

from the divestiture of the Genesis business during the fourth quarter of 2023.

Six months ended
The chart below presents net revenue and income from operations for the six months ended June 29, 2024 and July 1, 2023.
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Products and Solutions net revenue decreased $85 million, or 6.4%, as compared to the same period in 2023, primarily due to $68 million from the divestiture
of the Genesis business during the fourth quarter of 2023, lower sales volume of $28 million and unfavorable foreign currency fluctuations of $6 million. The
decrease was partially offset by price increases of $17 million. The volume declines impacted several categories including original equipment manufacturing,
security distribution and HVAC, partially offset by expansion in electrical distribution.

Income from operations increased $22 million, or 10%, from the same period in 2023, primarily due to lower material, freight and other manufacturing costs of
$40 million, lower selling, general and administrative expenses of $20 million and favorable pricing impact of $17 million. Partially offsetting the favorable
impacts to income from operations was unfavorable mix of $37 million from mix shifts to lower priced products, lower volumes of $10 million and $8 million

from the divestiture of the Genesis business during the fourth quarter of 2023.
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ADI Global Distribution

Three months ended

The chart below presents net revenue and income from operations for the three months ended June 29, 2024 and July 1, 2023.
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ADI Global Distribution net revenue increased $34 million, or 3.7%, as compared to the same period in 2023. The increase was driven by acquisition revenues
of $45 million partially offset by decrease in price of $10 million and unfavorable foreign currency fluctuations of $1 million.

Income from operations decreased $9 million, or 13%, as compared to the same period in 2023. The decrease was primarily due to unfavorable sales mix of $7
million and unfavorable manufacturing costs of $3 million.

Six months ended

The chart below presents net revenue and income from operations for the six months ended June 29, 2024 and July 1, 2023.
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ADI Global Distribution net revenue increased by $9 million, or 0.5%, as compared to the same period in 2023, due to additional $45 million from incremental
Snap One revenue and favorable foreign currency fluctuations of $3 million. The increase was partially offset by a decrease in volume and price of $25 million
and $14 million, respectively. The volume declines impacted several categories including residential security, access control and video, partially offset by

expansion in fire and data communications.

Income from operations decreased $24 million, or 18%, due to an unfavorable sales mix of $16 million, unfavorable manufacturing costs of $6 million and

lower sales volume of $2 million.
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Corporate
Three months ended

Corporate costs for the three months ended June 29, 2024 were $70 million and $33 million for the comparable period. The increase in Corporate costs was
driven by $30 million of Snap One acquisition costs, $6 million of debt extinguishment costs, and $5 million impairment of an equity security. These increases
are partially offset by lower employee expenses of $5 million.

Six months ended

Corporate costs for the six months ended June 29, 2024 were $103 million and $64 million for the comparable period. The increase in in Corporate costs was
primarily driven by $30 million of Snap One acquisition costs, $6 million of debt extinguishment costs, and $5 million of favorable adjustments related to the
tax indemnity accrual, and $5 million impairment of an equity security. These increases are partially offset by lower employee expenses of $8 million.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

As of June 29, 2024, total cash and cash equivalents were $413 million, of which 52% were held by foreign subsidiaries. Our liquidity is primarily dependent
on our ability to continue to generate positive cash flows from operations, supplemented by external sources of capital, as needed. Additional liquidity may also
be provided through access to the capital markets and our $500 million A&R Revolving Credit Facility.

In June 2024, we completed the acquisition of Snap One. This was partially financed in the amount of $600 million in incremental term loans under our A&R
Term B Facility, with a maturity date of May 14, 2031. Additionally, we issued Preferred Stock on June 14, 2024 for $500 million to partially finance the Snap
One acquisition. The remainder of the cash purchase price was financed with our existing cash.

Liquidity

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the rate of sales growth, market acceptance of our products, the timing and extent of
research and development projects, potential acquisitions of companies or technologies and the expansion of our sales and marketing activities. We may enter
into acquisitions or strategic arrangements in the future, which also could require us to seek additional equity or debt financing. While we may elect to seek
additional funding at any time, we believe our existing cash, cash equivalents and availability under our credit facilities are sufficient to meet our capital
requirements through at least the next 12 months and the longer term.

We may from time to time take steps to reduce our debt or otherwise improve our financial position. These actions could include prepayments, open market
debt repurchases, negotiated repurchases, other redemptions or retirements of outstanding debt, opportunistic refinancing of debt, raising additional capital or
divesting certain assets. The amount of prepayments or the amount of debt that may be refinanced, repurchased or otherwise retired, if any, will depend on
market conditions, trading levels of our debt, our cash position, compliance with debt covenants and other considerations.
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Credit Agreement

As of June 29, 2024, we had $1,991 million of long-term debt outstanding under our A&R Credit Agreement and Senior Notes due 2029, of which $12 million
is due in the next 12 months. We have entered into certain interest rate swap agreements to effectively convert a portion of our variable-rate debt to fixed rate
debt. Additionally, as part of our acquisition of Snap One, we acquired an interest rate cap with a notional of $346 million and a strike rate of 4.79%, which
effectively caps SOFR on the notional amount at that rate.

In June 2024, we obtained $600 million in incremental term loans under our A&R Term B Facility to partially finance our acquisition of Snap One. We also
extended the term of our A&R Revolving Credit Facility for a new five-year term.

Refer to Note 12. Long-Term Debt and Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of our
debt obligations and the timing of future principal and interest payments, including impacts from our Swap Agreements.

Common Share Repurchase Program

On August 3, 2023, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program for the repurchase of up to $150 million of our common
stock over an unlimited time period. During the June 29, 2024 period, we did not make any common share repurchases. As of June 29, 2024, we had $108
million of authorized repurchases remaining under the Share Repurchase Program.

Cash Flow Summary for the Six Months Ended June 29, 2024 and July 1, 2023

Our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the six months ended June 29, 2024 and July 1, 2023, as reflected in the Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements, are summarized as follows:

Six Months Ended
(in millions) June 29, 2024 July 1, 2023 $ change
Cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities $ 9 § 117 $ (23)
Investing activities (1,364) (55) (1,309)
Financing activities 1,052 (18) 1,070
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (5) 10 (15)
Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ (223) § 54§ (277)

Net cash provided by operating activities for the six months ended June 29, 2024 was $94 million. Compared to the six months ended July 1, 2023, net cash
provided by operating activities decreased $23 million. This is primarily due to a decrease in net income of $34 million and unfavorable changes in working
capital of $7 million. These amounts are offset by an increase in non-cash charges of $18 million.

Net cash used for investing activities for the six months ended June 29, 2024 was $1,364 million. Compared to the six months ended July 1, 2023, net cash
used for investing activities decreased $1,309 million, primarily due to an increase in cash used for acquisitions of $1,328 million related to the Snap One
acquisition offset by favorable changes in capital expenditures of $13 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 29, 2024 was $1,052 million. Compared to the six months ended July 1, 2023, net cash

used for financing activities increased $1,070 million, primarily due to an increase of $582 million incremental term loan borrowings under our A&R Term B
Facility, and an increase in the issuance of Preferred Stock in the amount of $482 million each related to the Snap One acquisition.
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Contractual Obligations and Probable Liability Payments

In addition to our long-term debt discussed above, our material cash requirements include the following contractual obligations.

Reimbursement Agreement Payments

In connection with the Spin-Off, we entered into the Reimbursement Agreement with Honeywell. As of June 29, 2024, a liability of $672 million was deemed
probable and reasonably estimable; however, it is possible we could pay $140 million per year (exclusive of any late payment fees up to 5% per annum) until

the earlier of: (1) December 31, 2043; or (2) December 31 of the third consecutive year during which the annual reimbursement obligation (including in respect
of deferred payment amounts) has been less than $25 million. During the six months ended June 29, 2024, we paid Honeywell $70 million under the

Reimbursement Agreement. For further discussion on the Reimbursement Agreement, refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies to the Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Environmental Liability Payments

We make environmental liability payments for sites which we own and are directly responsible. As of June 29, 2024, a liability of $22 million was deemed
probable and reasonably estimable.

Operating Leases

We have operating lease arrangements for the majority of our manufacturing sites, offices, engineering and lab sites, stocking locations, warehouses,
automobiles, and certain equipment. As of June 29, 2024, we had operating lease payment obligations of $248 million, with $52 million payable within 12
months.

Capital Expenditures

We believe our capital spending in recent years has been sufficient to maintain efficient production capacity, to implement important product and process
redesigns and to expand capacity to meet increased demand. Productivity projects have freed up capacity in our manufacturing facilities and are expected to
continue to do so. We expect to continue investing to expand and modernize our existing facilities and to create capacity for new product development.

Other Matters

Litigation, Environmental Matters and the Reimbursement Agreement

Refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We are exposed to market risk from foreign currency exchange rates, commodity price risk and interest rates, which could affect operating results, financial
position and cash flows. We manage our exposure to these market risks through our regular operating and financing activities and, when appropriate, through
the use of derivative financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 29, 2024, the Swap Agreements, with a notional value of $560 million, effectively convert a portion of our $1,714 million long-term variable rate
A&R Term B Facility to fixed rate debt. The Swap Agreements effectively convert a
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portion of our variable interest rate obligations to a rate based on Term SOFR with a minimum rate of 0.39% per annum to a base fixed weighted average rate
of 1.13% over the remaining terms.

As part of our acquisition of Snap One in the second quarter of 2024, we acquired an interest rate cap with a notional of $346 million and a strike rate of
4.79%.

As of June 29, 2024, an increase in interest rates by 100 bps would have an approximately $8 million impact on our annual interest expense.

For more information on the Swap Agreements and acquired interest rate cap, refer to Note 13. Derivative Financial Instruments and Note 14. Fair Value to the
Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We are exposed to market risks from changes in currency exchange rates. While we primarily transact with customers and suppliers in the U.S. dollar, we also
transact in foreign currencies, primarily including the British Pound, Indian Rupee, Mexican Peso, Euro, Canadian Dollar, and the Czech Koruna. These
exposures may impact total assets, liabilities, future earnings and/or operating cash flows. Our exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency
exchange rates results from transactions arising out of international trade, foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities, and international
financing activities between subsidiaries. We rely primarily on natural offsets to address our exposures and may supplement this approach from time to time by
entering into forward and option hedging contracts. As of June 29, 2024, we have no outstanding foreign currency hedging arrangements.

Commodity Price Risk

While we are exposed to commodity price risk, we attempt to pass through significant changes in component and raw material costs to our customers based on
the contractual terms of our arrangements. In limited situations, we may not be fully compensated for such changes in costs.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to give reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or
submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.

Management recognizes that any disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives. Because there are inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control
issues and instances of fraud have been or will be detected.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, with the assistance of other members of our management, conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the
period covered by this Quarterly Report. Based upon such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures, excluding an assessment of the internal control over financial reporting of Snap One as discussed below, are effective as of
the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

On June 14, 2024, we acquired Snap One, which previously reported in Part II, Item 9A “Controls and Procedures” of its Annual Reports on Form 10-K for its
fiscal years ended December 29, 2023, December 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 a
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material weakness related to ineffective information technology general controls (“ITGCs”) or information systems and applications relevant to the preparation
of its consolidated financial statements. We are in the process of evaluating the impact of Snap One’s internal controls on our system of internal controls and
disclosure controls and procedures. Except as described above, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the three months ended June 29, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. Other Information
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Refer to Note 16. Commitments and Contingencies to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report for a discussion on legal
proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

We face a variety of risks that are inherent in our business and our industry, including operational, legal and regulatory risks. Such risks could cause our actual
results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements, expectations and historical trends. There have been no material changes to the risk factors
described in our 2023 Annual Report on Form 10-K, except as reflected in the first three revised risk factors below and the three additional risk factors that
follow.

Revised Risk Factors:

We may from time to time pursue acquisitions. Our business may be adversely affected if we cannot consummate acquisitions on satisfactory terms, or if we
cannot effectively integrate acquired companies or assets.

We have in the past and may from time to time in the future continue to pursue and consummate acquisitions of companies or assets. Our ability to
consummate any future acquisitions will be partially dependent upon the availability of suitable acquisition candidates at favorable prices and upon
advantageous terms and conditions. We may not be able to find suitable acquisition candidates to purchase or may be unable to acquire on economically
acceptable terms or to receive necessary regulatory approvals or support.

The consummation of any particular acquisition may depend, in part, on our ability to raise the capital necessary to fund such acquisition which may not be
available to us at all or on economically advantageous terms. In addition, if we consummate an acquisition, our capitalization and results of operations may
change significantly. Future acquisitions could result in gross and/or operating income dilution, the incurring of additional debt or equity issuances and
contingent liabilities and an increase in interest and amortization expenses or periodic impairment expenses related to goodwill and other intangible assets and
significant charges relating to integration costs.

For example, we recently acquired the Snap One business and we are in the early stages of integrating this business into our ADI Global Distribution segment.
The acquisition is highly complementary to our prior ADI Global Distribution business and, therefore, is subject to many of the same risks that impact our ADI
Global Distribution business, in addition to a few specific risks specific to Snap One. The Snap One business relies on independent integrators who are certified
and trained in the Control4 proprietary smart living solutions to sell and install its solutions for end users and, therefore, is more reliant on these integrators to
market, sell, install and support Snap One solutions. In addition, because many of the Snap One solutions are designed to interoperate with a wide range of
third-party products that we do not own or control, it is important that we support the continued integration of these solutions with third-party products and
applications. The Snap One business also relies heavily on suppliers and manufacturing facilities located in China, Taiwan, and Southeast Asia, increasing our
exposure to potential political and trade instability and tension. The success of the acquisition will depend on our ability to integrate the business and also
manage these additional risks.

We may not be successful in effectively identifying all risks of an acquired business, integrating the acquired business or technology into our existing business
or realizing the benefits expected at acquisition. Our due diligence may fail to identify all of the liabilities or challenges of an acquired business, product,
software, service or technology, including issues related to intellectual property, product quality or product or software architecture, regulatory compliance
practices, revenue recognition or other accounting practices or employee, customer or supplier issues. We may not be able to achieve the expected operational
synergies or savings nor, or any growth targets identified in acquisition diligence. The successful
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integration of future acquisitions may also require substantial attention from our senior management and the management of the acquired business, which could
decrease the time that they have to manage our existing portfolio, attract customers and develop new products and services or attend to other acquisition
opportunities.

We rely on a dependable IT infrastructure and network operations that have adequate cybersecurity functionality.

The efficient operation of our business requires substantial investment in technology infrastructure systems, including enterprise resource planning systems,
information systems, supply chain management systems, digital commerce systems and connected solutions platforms and network operations and systems.
The failure to acquire, implement, maintain and upgrade as required these systems may impact our ability to respond effectively to changing customer
expectations, manage our business, scale our solutions effectively or impact our customer service levels, which may put us at a competitive disadvantage and
negatively impact our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In connection with our recent acquisition of the Snap One business,
we are in the process of consolidating and integrating our ADI and Snap One enterprise applications. We may not be able to successfully implement or
consolidate all systems without delays related to resource constraints or challenges with the critical implementation process. Repeated or prolonged
interruptions of service, due to cyber threats or problems with our systems or third-party technologies, whether or not in our control, could have a significant
negative impact on our reputation and our ability to sell products and services. Furthermore, we may incur higher than anticipated costs in connection with our
system implementation, which could adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition. Our business, results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows may be adversely affected if our information systems fail, become unavailable for prolonged periods of time, are corrupted or do not allow us to
transmit accurate information. Failure to properly or adequately address these issues, including the failure to fund backups, upgrades and improvements to our
systems, could impact our ability to perform necessary business operations, which could adversely affect our reputation, competitive position, business, results
of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Our ability to keep our business operating is highly dependent on the proper and efficient operation of our
data centers, networks, and data backup systems. In addition, a significant portion of our employees are engaged in remote or hybrid work from their homes,
which further exposes our information technology (“IT”) systems to potential cyber interference and disruption of work activities based on availability and
performance of internet access in the regions in which our employees reside.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock and the Securities Market
Our stock price has been volatile; stockholder’s percentage ownership in our Company may be diluted in the future.

The market price of our common stock has been volatile in the past and may be volatile in the future. The market price of our common stock may be
significantly affected by the following factors: actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results; changes in financial estimates by securities analysts or
our failure to perform in line with such estimates; announcements by us or our competitors of significant technical innovations, acquisitions, divestitures,
strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments; the loss of, or decrease in sales to, one or more key customers; global macroeconomic conditions;
and departures of key personnel.

A stockholder’s percentage ownership in our Company may be diluted in the future because of common stock-based equity awards that we have granted and
expect to grant in the future in accordance with our 2018 Stock Incentive Plan for the benefit of certain employees and other service providers, as well as our
equity plan for our non-employee directors. In addition, we may issue additional equity as necessary to finance our ongoing operations and future acquisitions.

In addition, our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (“our Certificate”) authorizes us to issue, without the approval of our stockholders, one or
more classes or series of preferred stock, which may have preferences over our common stock with respect to dividends and distributions, as our Board may
determine. The terms of one or more classes or series of preferred stock could dilute the voting power or reduce the value of our common stock. See “—The
preferred stock issued in connection with the Snap One transaction has rights, preferences and privileges that are not held by, and are preferential to,
the rights of our common stock and has reduced the relative voting power of the holders of our common stock.” Similarly, the repurchase or redemption
rights or liquidation preferences that we could assign to holders of preferred stock could affect the residual value of our common stock.
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New Risk Factors:

The preferred stock issued in connection with the Snap One transaction has rights, preferences and privileges that are not held by, and are preferential to,
the rights of our common stock and has reduced the relative voting power of the holders of our common stock.

In June 2024, we issued 500,000 shares of Series A Cumulative Convertible Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Preferred Stock”), to
CD&R Channel Holdings, L.P. (the “CD&R Stockholder”), an entity affiliated with the investment firm Clayton, Dubilier & Rice LLC, pursuant to an
Investment Agreement dated April 14, 2024 (the “Investment Agreement”). The proceeds of the issuance were used to partially finance the Snap One
transaction. The Preferred Stock is convertible perpetual participating preferred stock of Resideo, with an initial conversion price of $26.92 per share, and
accrues dividends at a rate of 7.0% per annum (payable in cash or in-kind, at the option of Resideo), with the potential for the dividend rate to increase to 10%
under specified circumstances. Moreover, if we declare or pay a cash dividend on our common stock, we will be required to declare and pay a dividend on the
outstanding Preferred Stock on a pro rata basis with the common shares determined on an as-converted basis at the time the dividend is declared.

The Preferred Stock may initially be converted at any time at the option of the holder into 18,573,551 shares of our common stock. In addition, under the terms
of the Preferred Stock, we may, at our option, force the conversion of all (but not less than all) of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock to common stock if
at any time the market price of our common stock exceeds 200% of the then-effective conversion price per share for at least 20 days out of any trailing 30-
trading day period. Any conversion of the Preferred Stock may significantly dilute the holders of our common stock. Unless we obtain shareholder approval,
the maximum number of shares of common stock into which the Preferred Stock may be converted will be limited such that, upon any conversion of Preferred
Stock, the number of shares of our common stock being issued upon conversion will not cause the holder thereof, when taken together with all other shares of
our common stock beneficially owned by such holder at the time of conversion, to beneficially own shares of our common stock exceeding 19.9% of the total
voting power of our common stock (on an as-converted basis), subject to the maximum number of shares of our common stock that may then be issued in such

conversion being in accordance with the listing requirements of the NYSE absent the receipt of stockholder approval.

The conversion price of the Preferred Stock is subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments, including in the event of any stock split, stock dividend,
recapitalization or similar event. In addition, holders of Preferred Stock have the right to receive a liquidation preference entitling them to be paid out of our
assets available for distribution to shareholders, before any payment may be made to the holders of shares of common stock, an amount equal to the greater of
(a) 100% of the liquidation preference thereof plus all accrued and unpaid dividends or (b) the amount that such holder would have been entitled to receive
upon our liquidation, dissolution and winding up if all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock had been converted into common stock immediately prior to such
liquidation, dissolution or winding up, without regard to any of the limitations on conversion or convertibility. Furthermore, upon the consummation of a
“change of control” transaction, Resideo has the right to redeem the shares of Preferred Stock at a redemption price equal to 150% of the original purchase
price of the Preferred Stock plus all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon.

The CD&R Stockholder holds a significant equity interest in our business and may exercise influence over us, including through their ability to designate
up to two directors to our board of directors, and its interests as a preferred equity holder may diverge from, or even conflict with, the interests of our other
holders of our common stock.

As of June 29, 2024, the CD&R Stockholder beneficially owns shares of our common stock and Preferred Stock, which, taken together on an as-converted
basis, represent approximately 11% of our total voting power. As a result, the CD&R Stockholder may have the indirect ability to influence our policies and
operations. In addition, under the Investment Agreement, the CD&R Stockholder is entitled to appoint up to two directors to our board of directors, subject to
specified minimum ownership requirements. Both Nathan K. Sleeper and John Stroup, partners at CD&R, currently serve as directors. With such representation
on our board of directors, the CD&R Stockholder has influence over the appointment of management and any action requiring the vote of our board of
directors, including significant corporate action such as mergers and sales of substantially all of our assets. Additionally, for so long as the CD&R Stockholder
owns Preferred Stock, certain matters will require the approval of the CD&R Stockholder, including: (1) amendments to our certificate of incorporation, the
certificate of designations for the Preferred Stock or our bylaws that would alter or change the terms or the powers, preferences, rights or privileges of the
Preferred Stock as to affect them adversely; (2) authorizing, creating, increasing the authorized amount of, or issuing any class or series of equity securities that
rank senior to or on party with the Preferred Stock; (3) increasing or decreasing the authorized number of shares of Preferred Stock; (4) amending certain debt
financing documents to include limitations on our ability to accrue dividends on the Preferred Stock that are more
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restrictive in any material respect than those set forth in our existing debt financing documents; or (5) adopting any plan of liquidation or filing any voluntary
petition for bankruptcy, receivership or any similar proceeding. The CD&R Stockholder and its affiliates are in the business of making or advising on
investments in companies, including businesses that may directly or indirectly compete with certain portions of our business. In addition, the CD&R
Stockholder may have an interest in pursuing acquisitions, divestitures, financings or other transactions that, in their judgment, could enhance their overall
equity investment and have a negative impact to holders of our common stock as a whole.

At the time we acquired the Snap One business, Snap One had disclosed a material weakness in its internal controls over financial reporting in its most
recent annual report and we are in the process of evaluating the impact of this material weakness on our internal control over financial reporting.

On June 14, 2024, we completed the acquisition of Snap One, which had disclosed a material weakness in its internal controls over financing reporting in its
most recent Form 10-K filed in March 2024. The material weakness related to the inability to design or maintain an effective control environment over certain
information technology general controls and information systems and applications relevant to the preparation of consolidated financial statements. As of the
date of this Quarterly Report, we have not fully integrated Snap One’s internal controls into our system of internal control. Given the timing of the acquisition
and the filing of this report, we have not concluded our assessment or tested the effectiveness of any changes to their internal controls. We are currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of Snap One’s internal controls on our system of internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures. We plan to take
appropriate and timely steps to evaluate and, if necessary, enhance the controls of the combined entity and that our disclosure controls and procedures continue
to be effective. We do not know at this time whether the material weakness identified by Snap One constitutes a material weakness for the consolidated
Company. Any failure to develop or maintain effective controls or any difficulties encountered in their implementation or improvement could harm our
operating results or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations and may result in a restatement of our annual or interim financial statements.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the three months ended June 29, 2024, we did not make any common share repurchases. As of June 29, 2024, we had approximately $108 million of
authorized repurchases remaining under the Share Repurchase Program.

Item 5. Other Information.

During the three months ended June 29, 2024, no director or officer of the Company adopted, modified or terminated a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement or
non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement, as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K.
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Item 6. Exhibits.

The Exhibits listed below on the Exhibit Index are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this Quarterly Report.

Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description

2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 14, 2024, by and among Resideo Technologies, Inc., Pop Acquisition Inc., and Snap One

Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of Series A Cumulative Convertible Participating Preferred Stock of Resideo
Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Form S-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 14,
2024, File No. 333-280220)

Indenture, dated as of July 17, 2024, among Resideo Funding Inc., as issuer, Resideo Technologies, Inc., the other guarantors named therein,
and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association,_as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 8-K filed on July 17
2024, File No. 001-38635)

Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated July 17, 2024 (filed herewith)

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2024, among Resideo Technologies, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, Resideo Holding Inc., a Delaware Corporation, Resideo Intermediate Holding Inc., a Delaware corporation, Resideo Funding

to the Form S-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 14, 2024, File No. 333-280220),

Investment Agreement, dated as of April 14, 2024, by and among Resideo Technologies, Inc., CD&R Channel Holdings, L.P. and Clayton,
Dubilier & Rice Fund XII, L.P. (solely for purposes of Section 4.10 thereof) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Resideo’s Form 8-
K filed on April 15, 2024, File No. 001-38635)

Amendment No. 1 to Investment Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2024, by and among Resideo Technologies, Inc., CD&R Channel

18,2024, File No. 001-38635),

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2024, by and between Resideo Technologies, Inc. and CD&R Channel Holdings, L.P.

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 14, 2024, among Resideo Technologies, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, Resideo Holding Inc., a Delaware Corporation, Resideo Intermediate Holding Inc., a Delaware corporation, Resideo Funding
Inc., a Delaware corporation, the lenders and issuing banks party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Resideo’s Form 8-K filed on June 18, 2024, File No. 001-38635)

Honeywell International Inc. and Resideo Intermediate Holding Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Resideo’s Form 8-K filed
on June 18, 2024, File No. 001-38635)
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31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a),_as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)_and 15d-14(a),_as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (filed herewith),

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 0f 2002 (filed herewith),

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document (filed herewith)
101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema (filed herewith)
101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase (filed herewith)
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase (filed herewith)
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase (filed herewith)
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase (filed herewith)

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

Resideo Technologies, Inc.

Date: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Anthony L. Trunzo

Anthony L. Trunzo
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Tina Beskid
Tina Beskid

Vice President, Controller, and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 4.2
Execution Version

FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE

Fifth Supplemental Indenture (this “Supplemental Indenture”), dated as of July 17, 2024, among Snap One Holdings
Corp., a Delaware corporation, Crackle Purchaser LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Wirepath LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company, Snap One, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, SunBrite Holding Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and SunBriteTV LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (each a “Guaranteeing Subsidiary,” and collectively, the
“Guaranteeing Subsidiaries”), Resideo Funding Inc. (the “Issuer”), and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association (as
successor in interest to U.S. Bank National Association), as trustee (the “Trustee”). Each of the Guaranteeing Subsidiaries is a
subsidiary of Resideo Technologies, Inc., one of the Guarantors (as defined in the Indenture referred to below) and the parent
company of the Issuer.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, each of the Issuer and the Guarantors (as defined in the Indenture referred to below) has heretofore
executed and delivered to the Trustee an indenture, dated as of August 26, 2021 (as supplemented by the First Supplemental
Indenture thereto, dated as of April 1, 2022, the Second Supplemental Indenture thereto, dated as of May 19, 2022, the Third
Supplemental Indenture thereto, dated as of September 26, 2022, and the Fourth Supplemental Indenture thereto, dated as of April
11, 2023, the “Indenture”), providing for the issuance of an unlimited aggregate principal amount of 4.000% Senior Notes due 2029
(the “Notes™);

WHEREAS, the Indenture provides that under certain circumstances a Guaranteeing Subsidiary shall execute and
deliver to the Trustee a supplemental indenture pursuant to which such Guaranteeing Subsidiary shall unconditionally Guarantee all
of the Issuer’s Obligations under the Notes and the Indenture on the terms and conditions set forth herein and under the Indenture;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9.01 of the Indenture, the Trustee is authorized to execute and deliver this
Supplemental Indenture.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties mutually covenant and agree for the equal and ratable benefit of the Holders as follows:

1. Capitalized Terms. Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings assigned to them in
the Indenture.

2. Guarantor. Each of the Guaranteeing Subsidiaries hereby agrees to be a Guarantor under the Indenture and to be
bound by the terms of the Indenture applicable to Guarantors, including Article 11 thereof.

3. Governing Law. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE WILL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.



4.  Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF THE GUARANTEEING SUBSIDIARIES AND THE TRUSTEE HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS SUPPLEMENTAL
INDENTURE, THE INDENTURE, THE NOTES, THE NOTE GUARANTEES OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED
HEREBY OR THEREBY.

5. Counterparts; Electronic Delivery. The parties may sign any number of copies of this Supplemental Indenture.
Each signed copy shall be an original, but all of them together represent the same agreement. The exchange of copies of this
Supplemental Indenture and of signature pages by facsimile or portable document format (“PDF”’) transmission shall constitute
effective execution and delivery of this Supplemental Indenture as to the parties hereto and may be used in lieu of the original
Supplemental Indenture for all purposes. Signatures of the parties hereto transmitted by facsimile or PDF shall be deemed to be their
original signatures for all purposes. The words “execution,” “signed,” “signature,” “delivery” and words of like import in or relating
to this Supplemental Indenture or any document to be signed in connection with this Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed to
include electronic signatures, deliveries or the keeping of records in electronic form, each of which shall be of the same legal effect,
validity or enforceability as a manually executed signature, physical delivery thereof or the use of a paper-based recordkeeping
system, as the case may be, and the parties hereto consent to conduct the transactions contemplated hereunder by electronic means.

6. Headings. The headings of the Sections of this Supplemental Indenture have been inserted for convenience of
reference only, are not to be considered a part of this Supplemental Indenture and shall in no way modify or restrict any of the terms
or provisions hereof.

[signature pages follow]



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have caused this Supplemental Indenture to be duly executed, all as of the date
first above written.

Guaranteeing Subsidiaries:

SNAP ONE HOLDINGS CORP.

By: /s/ John Heskett

Name: John Heskett
Title: Treasurer

CRACKLE PURCHASER LLC

By: /s/JD Ellis
Name: JD Ellis

Title: Chief Legal Counsel and
Secretary

WIREPATH LLC

By: /s/JD Ellis
Name: JD Ellis

Title: Chief Legal Officer and
Secretary

SNAP ONE, LLC

By: /s/JD Ellis
Name: JD Ellis
Title: Chief Legal Officer and Secretary

SUNBRITE HOLDING CORPORATION

By: /s/JD Ellis
Name: JD Ellis
Title: General Counsel and Secretary




[Signature Page to Fifth Supplemental Indenture]




SUNBRITETV LLC

By: /s/JD Ellis

Name: JD Ellis
Title: General Counsel and Secretary

Issuer:

RESIDEO FUNDING INC.

By: /s/ John Heskett

Name: John Heskett
Title: President and Treasurer

[Signature Page to Fifth Supplemental Indenture]



U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee

By: /s/ Michael K. Herberger

Name: Michael K. Herberger
Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to Fifth Supplemental Indenture]



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jay Geldmacher, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Resideo Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

S. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Jay Geldmacher

Jay Geldmacher
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Anthony L. Trunzo, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Resideo Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

S. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Anthony L. Trunzo

Anthony L. Trunzo
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Resideo Technologies, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 29, 2024 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Jay Geldmacher, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Jay Geldmacher
Jay Geldmacher

President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Resideo Technologies, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 29, 2024 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), I, Anthony L. Trunzo, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date: August 8, 2024 By: /s/ Anthony L. Trunzo

Anthony L. Trunzo
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



